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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Marshall University campus is two blocks wide and four blocks long
with the exception of the northeast and southwest corners and interrupts
Fourth Avenue for the four block distance. As one moves east along Fourth
Avenue, before 16th Street, he is on a direct course with what has long been
the main campus building of the University. Facing 16th Street and standing
directly in line with Fourth Avenue, resting upon a knoll sets "Old Main."

It is slightly sheltered from view by a large old beech tree, other smaller
trees, a bust of John Marshall, and a flag pole. This northern side, as is
the southern side, measures almost 400 feet in length while the front of the
building is 140 feet wide. It is a three story ouilding with the basement
rising some three feet above the ground level. The entire building is con-
structed of brick and stone and all of the foundations are three feet in
thickness. Portions of the building have a slate roof while others have
composition shingles and still others are covered with roll covering. The
buili.ng as it appears today is not just one building, but really five build-
ings; each completed in a different period, and each with the style of archi-
tecture predominant in its period.

The present front of the building, that part which faces 16th Street,
was the last portion completed. It is the part which is 140 feet wide. It
is Tudor Gothic in style of architecture, similar to Trinity College in Cam-
bridge, England. In the middle section of the front stands a tower with two
octagon columns standing out from the building. ./hile the building 1is only
three stories high, the tower portion is four stories in height with four
columns rising six feet above the top of the section. Each of these four
columns is of ornate brick work at the top. The third floor, on both sides
of the tower, has two small peaked structures which add a note of decora-
tiveness. The main entrance has stone steps. The entrance is at the base
of the tower and is of arched stone.

The north side of the building is far from being a straight line. There)
are many projecting areas, some with square corners and others which are
rounded. 4is previously mentioned, there are five sections to the building.
The first section measures 96% feet in depth.

The south side of the building shows a diminishing effect from front to
rear. Being situated on a knoll, the front part of the building on this
side is four stories tall with the basement being fully exposed.

Unlike the exterior of the building, which has seen only minor changes
during the years, the interior has seen a great deal of change.

All told, the building contains approximately 125 rooms give or take a
few partitions as cases warrent.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Although for the last 65 years, everyone has considered '"0ld Main" to
be a unit unto itself, this is not so. 1In reality, it is five buildings,
each with its own story, each built at a different time, and each with its
own architecture. Education is the hand which is clothed by the glove of
tradition and Old Main is the glove which provides respectability to Mar-
shall University.

Marshall University clings to the date of 1837 as its inception for it
was in the fall of that year that Marshall Academy was founded. It was no
more than a new name for an already in existence secondary school. 1In fact,
its physical facility was a log cabin situated atop a hill, For some years
prior to the inception of the Academy, this school was called Mt. Hebron.

On March 13, 1838, the General Assembly of Virginia passed an act establish-
ing Marshall Academy and named a board of trustees. It was named in honor

of John Marshall, Chief Justice of the United States Supreme Court from 1801
to 1835. Throughout its history, the heart of the University has existed on
that very spot from which it began, the site of 01d Main.

Between 1837 and 1870, the school was akin to a ping-pong ball, bouncing
between church control by the Methodists and the Presbyterians and state
control. At one time, it was sold for debt only later to fall back into the
hands of the state. 1867 was the year that the relatively new state of West
Virginia regained control; control which extends to the present day.

0ld Main saw its beginning in June, 1869, when the foundation was laid
and a corner stone was set by the Ancient, Free, and Accepted Masons of West
Virginia. By 1907, 0ld Main looked as we know it today.

Prior to 1907, the president of the college was called the principal
and some outstanding men in American history held that post. During their
tenure in office, they resided in the principal's apartment within the build
ing. During the years 1872 and 1873, James E. Morrow held that post and it
was during this time that Dwight W. Morrow was born. He first saw light
within the halls of Old Main on January 11, 1873. He was to go on to be a
great financier, American Ambassador to Mexico, and a Senator from New Jersey
His daughter Anne, a well known author, married John_Lindbexgh and lost her
first child in the famous kidnapping case of the"1930's. Morrow was followed
in office by James Beauchamp Clark, better known as "Champ." Clark served
from 1873 to 1874, when he left the school due to a great deal of dissent
over the failure of the state to support it financially. In 1935, James E.
Allen, father of former U.S. Commissioner of Education, James E. Allen, Jr..
became president. i

No one who has ever attended Marshall can forget 01ld Main. In fact,
alumni consider Old Main and the school itself to be identical. O0ld Main

is Marshall University and Marshall University is 0ld Main.
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